
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Board of Governors of the City of London School 

 
Date: WEDNESDAY, 24 FEBRUARY 2016 

Time: 11.00 am 

Venue: CITY OF LONDON SCHOOL, QUEEN VICTORIA STREET, EC4V 3AL 

  

Members: Ian Seaton (Chairman) 
Deputy Dr Giles Shilson (Deputy 
Chairman) 
Keith Bottomley 
Deputy Billy Dove (Chief 
Commoner) 
Stuart Fraser (Ex-Officio Member) 
Marianne Fredericks 
Alderman David Graves 
Deputy the Revd Stephen Haines 
Ronel Lehmann (External 
Member) 
 

Lord Levene of Portsoken (External 
Member) 
Edward Lord 
Christopher Martin (External Member) 
Sylvia Moys 
Deputy Joyce Nash 
Dame Mary Richardson (External 
Member) 
Sir Michael Snyder (Ex-Officio Member) 
Deputy James Thomson 
Prof. J M A Whitehouse (External 
Member) 
 

 
 
 
Enquiries: David Arnold 

 tel. no.: 020 7332 1174 
david.arnold@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

 
 

 
Lunch will be served at the rising of the Board  

NB: Part of this meeting could be the subject of audio or video recording  
 

 
John Barradell 

Town Clerk and Chief Executive 

Public Document Pack



 

 

AGENDA 
 

Part 1 - Public Agenda 
 
1. APOLOGIES 
 
2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF 

ITEMS ON THE AGENDA 
 
3. MINUTES 
 To agree the public minutes and summary of the meeting held on 2 December 2015. 

 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 1 - 6) 

 
4. GOVERNANCE SELF-REVIEW 
 Report of the Town Clerk. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 7 - 14) 

 
5. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE BOARD 
 
6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
 
7. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 MOTION - That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 

be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act. 

 For Decision 
 

Part 2 - Non-Public Agenda 
 
8. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES 
 To agree the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 2 December 2015. 

 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 15 - 18) 

 
9. HEAD'S REPORT 
 Report of the Head of the City of London School. 

 
N.B. Appendix 4A is in the Confidential Agenda 

 For Decision 
 (Pages 19 - 108) 

 
10. GATEWAY 3/4 OPTIONS APPRAISAL - SUMMER WORKS 
 Joint report of the Head of the City of London School and the City Surveyor. 

 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 109 - 122) 

 



 

3 
 

11. REVIEW OF BURSARY GUIDELINES 
 Joint report of the Chamberlain, the Headmistress of the City of London School for 

Girls, the Head of the City of London School, and the Headmaster of the City of 
London Freemen’s School. 

 For Decision 
 (Pages 123 - 142) 

 
12. NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 

BOARD 
 
13. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND 

WHICH THE BOARD AGREES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE PUBLIC 
ARE EXCLUDED 

 
 

Part 3 - Confidential Agenda 
 
14. HEAD'S REPORT APPENDIX 4A - KEY RISKS FACED BY THE CITY OF LONDON 

SCHOOL 
 Report of the Head of the City of London School. 
 For Decision 



This page is intentionally left blank



BOARD OF GOVERNORS OF THE CITY OF LONDON SCHOOL 
 

Wednesday, 2 December 2015  
 

Minutes of the meeting of the Board of Governors of the City of London School 
held at the City of London School, EC4 at 11.00 am 

 
Present 
 
Members: 
Ian Seaton (Chairman) 
Deputy Billy Dove (Chief Commoner) 
Marianne Fredericks 
Ronel Lehmann (Co-Opted Member) 
Edward Lord 
 

Sylvia Moys 
Deputy Joyce Nash 
Dame Mary Richardson (Co-Opted 
Member) 
 

 
Officers: 
David Arnold - Town Clerk’s Department 

Caroline Al-Beyerty - Chamberlain's Department 

Steven Reynolds - Chamberlain's Department 

Sarah Fletcher - Head, City of London School 

Dr Richard Brookes - City of London School 

Michael Clarkson - City of London School 

Simon Hubbard - City of London School 

Coco Stephenson - City of London School 

Karyn Ramsay - City Surveyor’s Department 

Pat Dixon - Community and Children's Services Department 

 
 
 

1. APOLOGIES  
Apologies for absence were received from Deputy Giles Shilson (Deputy 
Chairman), Sophie Ann Fernandes, Alderman David Graves, Deputy the Revd 
Stephen Haines, Lord Levene of Portsoken, Christopher Martin, Deputy James 
Thomson, and Prof. Michael Whitehouse. 
 

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN 
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA  
There were none. 
 

3. MINUTES  
RESOLVED – That the public minutes and non-public summary of the meeting 
held on 16 October 2015 be approved as a correct record, subject to the 
removal of Lord Levene from the list of those present. 
 
 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Matters Arising 
 
Revenue Outturn 2014/15 
The Chamberlain was heard regarding a recent request from Members of this 
Board to alter the future presentation of their Revenue Outturn reports.  
 
The Chamberlain made reference to the fact that this Board was more 
commercially focused, where income was key for the operation of the School. 
The same also applied to other areas such as the Barbican Centre, Markets, 
the City of London Freemen’s School, and the City of London School for Girls. 
The Chamberlain assured Governors that officers were happy to assist in 
providing Members with management information in a more commercial format. 
However, there were some limitations in terms of the financial systems 
currently used to generate this information and the need for compliance with 
local authority financial regulations. The Chamberlain reported that the financial 
systems and the budget adopted a Local Authority format, with expenditure as 
a priority. She explained that local government regulations and the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) definitions dictated how 
the budget books appeared for consideration by the Finance Committee and 
Court of Common Council. 
 
The Chamberlain would develop an appropriate report format in consultation 
with the Chairman, Deputy Chairman and Bursar. Members noted that a 
balance would need to be struck regarding the amount of staff time and 
resources it would take to develop the final separate format and would be 
applied to all City of London Schools. 
 

4. LOCAL AUTHORITIES DESIGNATED OFFICER ANNUAL REPORT  
The Board received a report of the Director of the Community and Children’s 
Services regarding an annual update of the Local Authorities Designated 
Officer (LADO). The LADO advised Governors that she was concerned that not 
all relevant cases across the City of London Corporation were being referred to 
her so the profile of the reporting process had been raised during 2014/15. A 
Governor noted that the report contained some grammatical errors, the details 
of which would be provided to the Town Clerk for the report to be amended. 
 
In response to a Governor’s question, the Head and Senior Deputy Head 
advised that unsubstantiated allegations did not remain on Teachers’ records 
unless the Police were involved, in which case it may be recorded on a DBS 
check. The Head added that Headteachers were required to report as much as 
possible so instances may be recorded as a matter of safety, although a 
committee could be called to determine whether or not a case should be 
recorded. 
 
In response to a Governor’s question regarding the referral process, the LADO 
advised that a strategy meeting would be held within three working days of an 
allegation. The Police would be included if the allegation constituted a criminal 
offence. The LADO would continue to investigate the allegation if the case was 
not deemed to involve a criminal offence. If no evidence was found to 

Page 2



substantiate the allegation, the case would be dismissed and this would be 
recorded to protect Teachers against malicious or vexatious allegations. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 
 

5. GOVERNANCE REVIEW  
The Board received an update regarding the proposed self-review of 
governance at the School to ensure the Board was following best practice. After 
careful consideration, it was agreed that the Town Clerk would carry out the 
review and collate responses to the governance self-review form, which had 
already been circulated to the Board. Governors were asked to complete and 
return the form to the Town Clerk within seven days of the meeting. A report of 
the Town Clerk outlining the results of the self-review survey would then be 
submitted to the next Board meeting. The Board also agreed to additional 
appointment of Deputy Bill Dove (Chief Commoner) to the Governance Working 
Party. 
 
RESOLVED – That:- 

a) the Town Clerk be instructed to carry out the review of governance; and 
b) the appointment of Deputy Bill Dove (Chief Commoner) to the 

Governance Working Party be approved. 
 

6. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE BOARD  
There were none. 
 

7. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT  
The Board considered an item of urgent business regarding the Prevent 
Strategy. Governors were advised that the prevention of radicalisation amongst 
pupils had been introduced to the Strategy. All staff had received relevant 
training at the start of the school year to make them aware of how to report 
instances of suspected radicalisation as part of the safeguarding procedure. It 
had recently become part of the PSHE curriculum, as well as being discussed 
in assemblies and in other relevant subjects. 
 
In response to Governors’ questions, the Assistant Head (Pastoral) advised 
that no instances had been reported yet and staff were monitoring social media 
groups associated to the School. She added that the matter would be raised 
with parents as part of an educational programme on child internet safety. In 
response to a Governor’s suggestion, she advised that consultation with 
Schools in the London Borough of Tower Hamlets who had experienced cases 
of radicalisation would be considered.  
 

8. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
RESOLVED – That, Under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12 A of the Local Government Act. 
 
 
 

Page 3



9. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES  
RESOLVED – That the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 16 October 
2015 be approved. 
 

10. HEAD'S REPORT  
The Board received a report of the Head that provided an update on the 
management and operational activities of the School since the last meeting. 
 

11. THE DEVELOPMENT OFFICE  
The Board considered a report of the Chairman regarding a proposal to co-opt 
a Trustee of the City of London School Bursary Trust to the Board and to 
accept an offer of two places on the Board of the Trust. Governors noted that 
an additional Co-Opted Governor would require an amendment to the Board’s 
Terms of Reference to increase the number of Co-Optees from five to six, in 
line with the City of London School for Girls. The Board agreed to pursue this 
amendment through the appropriate process. 
 

12. PROPOSED 2016/17 REVENUE BUDGET  
The Board considered a joint report of the Chamberlain and the Head that 
sought approval to the proposed 2016/17 revenue budget, for subsequent 
submission to the Finance Committee. 
 

13. REPAIRS, MAINTENANCE AND IMPROVEMENTS FUND  
The Board considered a joint report of the Chamberlain, the Head, and the City 
Surveyor that provided an updated projection of cost of works to be met from 
the Repairs, Maintenance and Improvements Fund over the next 21 years.  
 

14. NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF 
THE BOARD  
There were none. 
 

15. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
AND WHICH THE BOARD AGREES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST 
THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED  
The Chairman agreed to an item of urgent business to be received by 
Governors only.  
 
The Chief Commoner requested that the School provide name plates for all 
those attending future meetings at the School. 
 

 
 
The meeting closed at 1.00 pm 
 
 
 

 

Chairman 
 
 
 

Page 4



Contact Officer: David Arnold 
tel. no.: 020 7332 1174 
david.arnold@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 

 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



Committee(s) Dated: 

Board of Governors of the City of London School 24 February 2016 

Subject: 
Governance Self-Review 

Public 

Report of: 
Town Clerk 

 
For Decision 
 Report author: 

David Arnold, Town Clerk’s Department 

 
 

Summary 
 
This report provides the Board of Governors of the City of London School with a 
summary of the results and suggestions arising from the recent self-review of 
governance. Governors were asked to complete a governance self-review survey 
questionnaire during December 2015 to ensure that the Board was following best 
practice and exercising its oversight of the School effectively. The responses to the 
self-review have been summarised and are provided in Appendix 1 and the report 
sets out some options for Governors’ consideration. 
 
 

Recommendation(s) 
 
The Board is asked to consider whether to make any changes to the current 
constitution and governance structure of the Board, in line with the responses and 
comments arising from the recent survey as set out in Appendix 1. 
 
 
 

Main Report 
 

Background 
 
1. In June 2015, the Board of Governors agreed to undertake a review of 

governance at the School following a report of the Association of Governing 
Bodies of Independent Schools (AGBIS) representative. A Governance Working 
Party was appointed, to be led by Edward Lord and comprising the Chairman, 
Deputy Chairman, the Head and Senior Deputy Head, to review the current 
governance of the Board. 
 

2. In December 2015, Governors were asked to anonymously complete a self-
review form to assess the current governance structure of the Board. It was 
agreed that the Town Clerk would collate the results and present a summary of 
the responses to the Board. The responses are summarised in Appendix 1 and 
suggested changes to the constitution and governance structure of the Board are 
outlined below. 

 
 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



Current Position 
 
3. The Board currently consists of up to 18 Governors: 1 Alderman, 10 Common 

Councilmen, 5 Co-opted individuals, and 2 Ex-Officio Members (Chairmen of the 
Board of Governors of the City of London Freemen’s School and School for 
Girls). 
 

4. The current constitution was agreed by the Board in January 2005 and then by 
the Policy and Resources Committee in June 2005, following a review of the 
governance of the City of London School carried out by the Association of 
Governing Bodies of Independent Schools (AGBIS) in June 2004. Prior to 2005, 
all three City of London School Boards of Governors consisted of 2 Aldermen, 12 
Common Councilmen, 6 Co-opted individuals, and 2 Ex-Officio Members. The 
AGBIS review, however, concluded the following:- 

 
The current membership of the Board is 12 Members of the Corporation 
(previously 16), together with two Aldermen.  Six co-opted members are also 
allowed, on the recommendation of the Head and with approval by the Board.  
A Board of about 14 or 15 members should be about right for the School.  
Meetings are also attended by the Head, the Deputy Head and the Bursar, 
two or three representatives of the Town Clerk’s office and – on occasion – 
representatives of the Personnel, Technical Services and Chamberlain’s 
Department, the Chief Commoner and the chairmen of the other two City 
Schools.  If all attended, there could be 30 present at a meeting.  This is too 
large, even if several are just in attendance or as advisers. 

 
5. The same conclusion was presented to the Boards of Governors of the City of 

London Freemen’s School and the School for Girls during 2005 but Governors of 
these two Boards decided not to support a reduction in size. 
 

6. The Board currently has a separate Bursary Committee and a Teachers Pay 
Panel. However, comments arising from the governance self-review suggested 
that the Board may also benefit from a Sub-Committee(s) to consider financial 
and property matters. This is a common practice amongst Boards of Governors 
of other Independent Schools. It should be noted, however, that it is difficult to 
compare the City of London School with any other institutions, aside from the City 
of London Freemen’s School and School for Girls, due to its unique support from 
the City of London Corporation. 

 
Options 
 

Constitution 
7. The options for amending the constitution of the Board are outlined below:- 

a. To increase the number Governors to up to 19 by increasing the 
number of Co-opted individuals from 5 to 6.  

 
b. To increase the number of Governors to up to 20 by increasing the 

number of Co-Opted individuals from 5 to 6 and the number of 
Aldermen from 1 to 2. 

 

Page 8



c. To review the decision made by the Board in 2005 following the AGBIS 
review in 2004, with a view to returning to a Board comprising 22 
Governors: 2 Aldermen, 12 Common Councilmen, 6 Co-opted 
individuals, and 2 Ex-Officio Members.  

 
d. To maintain and make no changes to the current constitution of the 

Board, comprising 1 Alderman, 10 Common Councilmen, 5 Co-opted 
individuals, and 2 Ex-Officio Members, as agreed by the Board of 
Governors in January 2005 following the recommendation of the 
AGBIS review. 

 
8. If Governors are minded to make any change to the constitution of the Board, 

then consideration should be given to option c as it would increase levels of 
relevant expertise, return to consistency with the current constitutions of the 
Boards of Governors of the City of London Freemen’s School and School for 
Girls, and maintains the appropriate balance between City Corporation and Co-
Opted Governors. Governors should note that any changes made to the 
constitution of the Board require subsequent approval from the Policy and 
Resources Committee and Court of Common Council. 
 

9. Options a, b and c may require an increase in the quorum from 5 to 6 City 
Corporation Members to ensure there is not a majority of Co-opted individuals at 
any one meeting. Governors should also note that the Board’s Terms of 
Reference also specifies that any decision taken shall require the agreement of a 
majority of Common Council Governors present at the meeting and voting. 

 
Sub-Committee 

10. The creation of a Finance, General Purposes and Estates Sub-Committee of the 
Board of Governors of the City of London School, comprising the Chairman, 
Deputy Chairman, and up to 4 other Governors appointed by the Board (one of 
whom must be a City Corporation Member), would enable Governors with 
relevant expertise to oversee the School’s finances and facilities. This type of 
Sub-Committee would usually meet once a term in sufficient time to report to the 
next Board meeting regarding any matters that require agreement. The Sub-
Committee could have power to agree action to be taken on arrears of fees and 
make recommendations for the Board’s approval regarding the following 
matters:- 

- the annual budget, including the level of tuition fees and other charges; 
- consideration of any proposals for major capital spending; 
- the review of any investments and reserves held by the School; 
- major premises developments; 
- compliance with health and safety requirements; and 
- any other finance issues which may arise. 

 
11. Boards of Governors of Independent Schools may also wish to create Academic 

and Education Sub-Committees to consider important curricular and staffing 
issues, such as sabbatical leave requests and the review of policies relating to 
educational provision to ensure compliance with legal or good practice 
requirements. This type of Sub-Committee would also usually have to meet once 

Page 9



a term in sufficient time to report to the next Board meeting regarding any matters 
that require agreement. 

 
Conclusion 
 
12. This report provides details of the outcome of the governance self-review 

questionnaire that was completed by Governors during December 2015 and 
provides options for amendments to the constitution and governance structure of 
the Board if Governors see fit. Governors are now invited to note the responses 
in Appendix 1 and to consider whether to pursue any changes. 
 

Appendices 
 

 Appendix 1 – Responses to the Board of Governors of the City of London 
School Governance Self-Review 

 
 
David Arnold 
Committee and Member Services Officer 
Town Clerk’s Department 
 
T: 020 7332 1174 
E: david.arnold@cityoflondon.gov.uk  
 
 
  

Page 10

mailto:david.arnold@cityoflondon.gov.uk


APPENDIX 1 
 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS OF THE CITY OF LONDON SCHOOL 
GOVERNANCE SELF-REVIEW 

 
 

The Board of Governors sees the need to act as a team and to take 
collective responsibility for its decisions 
A majority of the respondents agreed with this statement. Two respondents 
disagreed but no explanation or comments were provided. 

 
The Board of Governors ensures that the structure of governance is 
capable of providing the quality of information needed to exercise effective 
oversight of the School 
A majority of the respondents agreed with this statement. However, comments 
suggested that the Board is too remote to exercise effective oversight of the 
School. Governors suggested that this might improve with a small number of 
Sub-Committees to consider financial matters and matters relating to the School 
premises. One Governor added that Board Members should challenge Officers if 
they consider the information provided to them to be inadequate, as the oversight 
of the School was down to the Governors themselves not the structure of the 
Board. 
 
Governors seek to attend the majority of meetings, they prepare effectively 
and contribute appropriately to discussion 
All respondents agreed with this statement apart from one, who remained 
uncertain. Comments suggested that there were some notable absentees at 
some meetings. 
 
Decisions are taken, recorded and actioned which properly reflect the 
consensus view of meetings 
All respondents agreed with this statement although comments suggested that 
the role of the City of London Corporation and the ability for the Head to approve 
certain matters under her own delegated authority was sometimes opaque. One 
Governor added that more business outside the City Corporation’s remit as a 
Local Authority should be considered during the Non-Public Agenda. 
 
No significant decisions are taken outside of Governors’ meetings without 
specific, delegated authority 
A majority of the respondents agreed with this statement. However, comments 
suggested that some aspects of City Corporation governance remained 
confusing. One Governor would have liked more information regarding the 
appointment of the Bursar and another suggested that all decisions taken under 
the Head’s delegated authority should be reported to the Board as each 
academic year progresses. 
 
The Board of Governors has a mechanism to receive and evaluate 
information from the Head and senior staff 
Respondents were split relatively evenly between agreeing, disagreeing or being 
uncertain about this statement. Comments suggested that the contents of Head’s 

Page 11



reports should be revisited and that she is currently inhibited from talking about 
‘what matters’ at the formal Board meetings. 
 
The Board of Governors, the Head and the Bursar work well together 
All respondents agreed with this statement apart from one, who remained 
uncertain as the Bursar was only recently appointed so this combination was yet 
to be fully tested. Another Governor added that recent Chairmen have worked 
well with the Head(s) but certain procedures have prevented problems being 
solved properly in the past. 
 
The Board of Governors has a clear, written strategic vision for the School 
which has been developed jointly with the Head and senior staff and is 
reviewed at appropriate intervals 
A majority of the respondents agreed with this statement. A Governor who 
remained uncertain commented that the strategic vision needs to be finalised 
succinctly. 
 
The School’s Development Plan supports the vision; it is sufficiently 
specific and is reviewed regularly 
A majority of the respondents agreed with this statement and no one disagreed. 
Governors commented on the success and importance of the recent Governors’ 
Away Day, with one adding that it should become a regular annual event. 
 
The Board of Governors is able to review the Strategic Plan and to change 
direction if necessary 
All respondents agreed with this statement apart from one, who remained 
uncertain as it was too soon to tell. 
 
The Board of Governors has considered its composition, whether it has an 
appropriate range of specialist skill and whether the length of governors’ 
terms of office is appropriate 
Respondents were split relatively evenly between agreeing, disagreeing or being 
uncertain about this statement. Comments suggested that the skillset required 
and of term lengths for Co-Opted and City Corporation Governors could be 
audited or reviewed. One Governor added that the Co-Opted Governors bring 
valuable attributes to the work of the Board and that it is difficult to attract more 
Common Councilmen Governors due to the substantial number of Education 
links the City Corporation has. 
 
All Governors are encouraged to be involved in succession planning 
Some respondents agreed but a majority remained uncertain about this 
statement. Comments suggested that the idea of succession planning was a 
mystery to Co-Opted Governors. Another Governor suggested that it needs more 
thought in future to avoid the recent recruitment troubles. 
 
The Board of Governors knows and understands the Objects of the School 
and its duties as ‘trustees’ 
A majority of the respondents agreed with this statement and no one disagreed. 
A Governor who remained uncertain suggested that the Board might benefit from 

Page 12



a report of the Comptroller and City Solicitor outlining the role and duties of 
‘trustees’. 
 
The Board of Governors acts reasonably and prudently in all matters and 
takes advice when necessary 
All of the respondents agreed with this statement. 
 
The Board of Governors has in place effective control systems and 
procedures for safeguarding the assets of the Charity 
All of the respondents agreed with this statement apart from one, who remained 
uncertain because the role of the Development Office and the School as a 
Charity needed further thought. 
 
Committees of the Board of Governors have terms of reference which 
clarify any delegated power and their purpose and operation are well 
understood 
Respondents were split relatively evenly between agreeing, disagreeing or being 
uncertain about this statement. Comments noted that there are currently only two 
Sub-Committees of the Board, the Bursary and Reference Sub-Committees, and 
that Governors required further explanation about the Board’s Terms of 
Reference. 
 
The Board of Governors regularly reviews the Schools’ performance and 
achieves a wise balance between supporting the Head and senior staff and 
holding them to account 
A majority of the respondents agreed with this statement, however some thought 
that there was no such mechanism in place and that the Board was too far 
removed from the School’s management team so a new balance needs to be 
sought. 
 
The Board of Governors’ understanding of regulation is sufficient to ensure 
effective oversight of management’s compliance 
A majority of the respondents agreed with this statement, although one disagreed 
and another remained uncertain. 
 
The Board of Governors keeps abreast of educational developments and is 
strongly committed to supporting governor training 
A majority of the respondents agreed with this statement. Comments from two 
Governors who disagreed suggested that not all Board Members attended 
enough training and development sessions and that educational development 
could be included more in Governor training. 
 
Self-Assessment – Time  
All respondents agreed that they are able to devote sufficient time to the work of 
the Board and able to attend meetings regularly. Respondents generally 
commented that they would like to find more time to attend a better proportion of 
important school events. 

 
 
 

Page 13



Self-Assessment – Meetings  
All respondents agreed that they are adequately briefed before each meeting; 
have sufficient time to read the briefing papers; the business considered is 
appropriate for Governors; and meetings are well run and not too long. A majority 
of respondents agreed that the discussion at meetings is at the appropriate level 
with a sufficient focus on strategy and that outcomes are clear and actioned 
efficiently. One Governor added that this was not always the case. General 
comments regarding meetings included suggestions for an increase in the 
number of Board meetings throughout the year or an increase in length of the 
meetings to ensure that more time can be given to basic School functions. 
 
Self-Assessment – Training  
A majority of the respondents had attended a training event in the last two years 
but also agreed that there were gaps in their knowledge which needed to be 
filled. Respondents suggested that more training events could be offered during 
the year, providing the training is relevant. One Governor commented that a 
better understanding of the role of the Senior Management Team (SMT) would 
be beneficial. 
 
Self-Assessment – Improvement  
Respondents suggested that the Board could operate more effectively than it 
already does by a higher turnover of both City Corporation and Co-Opted 
Governors and the addition of more Sub-Committees to consider financial and 
property matters. One Governor noted that the Board operates as well as can be 
expected for a group of such willing volunteers. 
 
One Governor also made a number of additional suggestions for ways in which 
Governors could become less removed from the day to day workings of the 
School, for the Board’s consideration. These included:- 

 Appointing a Governor as the Common Room representative occasionally 
at break time and make him/herself available to staff at break times on 
certain agreed bases; 

 Appointing Governors to specific departments as a critical friend, attending 
classes once a term, including departmental meetings; 

 Dividing the annual task of reviewing policies amongst Governors, working 
with the relevant staff member, to give awareness of up to date legal 
requirements; 

 Providing opportunities for the Head to discuss openly and unrestrained by 
City Corporation presence, un-minuted if necessary, about the aspects of 
her work highest on her agenda. 

 

Page 14



Document is Restricted

Page 15

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 19

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 27

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 31

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 33

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 73

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 89

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 91

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 109

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 121

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 123

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 129

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 131

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 133

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 135

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 139

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Governance Self-Review
	8 Non-Public Minutes
	9 Head's Report
	Appendix 1a - Scholarships and Bursaries
	Appendix 1b - Scholarships
	Appendix 2 - Safeguarding and Child Protection Policy 2016
	Appendix 3 - Safeguarding
	Appendix 4B - Risk
	Appendix 4C - Risk Register

	10 Gateway 3/4 Options Appraisal - Summer Works
	Risk Register

	11 Review of Bursary Guidelines
	Annex A
	Annex B
	Annex C
	Annex D
	Annex E


